
U.S. Department of Justice 
Bureau of Alcohol. Tobacco. Firearms and Explosives Assignment and Report 

1. OPERATING NAME AND ADDRESS 
(INCLUDE ZIP CODE AND COUNTY) 

Hunter's Den. Inc. 
11779 Buchanan Trail East 
Waynesboro.PA 17268. FRANKLIN 

2. U.I. NUMBER (ORG. SEG. CODE, ASSIGNMENT NO., P P.C.) 
766085-2017-0056-B1B 

3 PERMIT/LICENSE NUMBER 
825055012J00130 

4a. TARGET DATE 4b. TARGET HOURS 

5. REQUESTED BY (SIGNATURE, TITLE AND DATE) 

6. ATF OFFICER(S) ASSIGNED 
(b)(6) - Lead Investigator 

7 ASSIGNED BY (SIGNATURE, TITLE AND DATE) 

(b)(6) Area Supervisor. 10/03/2016 

8. PURPOSE/SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 
Recall Inspection - you MUST notify the Area Supervisor prior to commencing your onsite. Please provide the date of your anticipated 
onsite so that the proper reporting to division staff may be done. 

9. INSPECTION RESULTS CHECK IF NO VIOLATIONS, ADJUSTMENTS, ETC 10 TRAVEL EXPENSES ,OPTIONAL) 
NO OF VIOLATIONS 4 NO. OF REFERRALS 1 2111 - PER DIEM 

NO. OF TECS CHECKS 11 NO. OF TECS HITS 1 2112 - P O A 

NO OF TAX 
ADJUSTMENTS 

$ VALUE OF TAX INCREASES 2113 - COMM. AIR 

$ VALUE OF TAX DECREASES 2114 - RENTAL CAR 

NO. OF ASSESSMENTS $ VALUE OF ASSESSMENTS 2115 - GPV EXPENSES 

NO. OF CLAIMS $ VALUE OF CLAIMS 2116 - MISC 

NO. OF TAX PERIODS $ VALUE OF TAXES VERIFIED TOTAL $ FOR INSP. 

11 ATF OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION 

Submitted by (b)(6) - Industry Operations Investigator 

Suhmittarl milnoni7 
Alternate Recommendation: 
Four violations were found and cited during this inspection. All four violations cited during this inspection were repeat violations from 
previous inspections. A Report of Violations was issued to the licensee. Because of the repeat violations cited, a strict reading of the 
Administrative Action policy would allow for a recommendation of Revocation. However. the licensee was found during this inspectior 
to have a compliance rate of 99.7% in regards to the A&D books and inventory, and was found to have a compliance rate of 97.91% 
compliance rate in regards to the ATF Forms 4473. The violations found would only meet the threshold of a Report of Violations issued 
only if this was the licensee's first inspection. Because the compliance rate for this licensee is so high. and the number of instances of 
violations found was lower than found in previous inspections, willfulness to not abide by the regulations cannot be articulated. It is 
recommended that the licensee be issued a Warning Letter to address the violations found. specifically the ATF Form 4473 
Certification Section errors, with no Recall Inspection. 

Viols WL ONLY and No Recall Inspection 

ATF OFFICER'S NAME (MONTH, YEAR, HOURS) 

JAN 2017 76.00 
MAR 2017 2.00 

12. TIME ACCOUNTING DATA 

(b)(6) 

ATF OFFICER'S SUBTOTAL 78.00 ATF OFFICER'S SIGNATURE 

TOTAL HOURS 78.00 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Bureau of Alcohol. Tobacco. Firearms and Explosives Assignment and Report 

1. OPERATING NAME AND ADDRESS 
(INCLUDE ZIP CODE AND COUNTY) 

Hunter's Den. Inc. 
11779 Buchanan Trail East 
Waynesboro.PA 17268. FRANKLIN 

2. U.I. NUMBER (ORG. SEG. CODE, ASSIGNMENT NO., P P.C.) 
766085-2017-0056-B1B 

3 PERMIT/LICENSE NUMBER 
825055012J00130 

4a. TARGET DATE 4b. TARGET HOURS 

5 REQUESTED BY (SIGNATURE, TITLE AND DATE) 

13. REVIEW AND ROUTING 

REVIEW COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATION 

Hunter's Den, Inc. was previously the subject of a Warning Conference in 2015 with the Harrisburg Area Supervisor_ This recall inspection 
disclosed significant improvements in most areas. While there is still room for improvement, this licensee has implemented the compliance plan 
worked out with the Area Supervisor during the warning conference. Current and previous inspection violation statistics are provided below for 
comparison. Please note, the licensee saw a 25% increase in ATF Form 4473 transfers during the 2016-17 inspection period, making their 
improvement all the more significant. 

4473s reviewed 1,344 

Violations Cited: 
Certification Section 
Section A 
Other 
A&D Discrepancies 
Multiple Sale 

(L413 Public 

1,670 - 25% Increase 

I
.  - 33% Reduction 

90% Reduction 
80% Reduction 
violation not cited in 2015 inspection 

100% Reduction 

Alternate of warning letter, no recall, in lieu of revocation to administrative action policy requirement of revocation for repeat violations is appropriate 
as, 

1.Willfulness is not evident, 
2.The error rate is neglig ble relative to the business volume, 
3.There is no evidence of straw sales/trafficking, 
4.There are no unresolved traces or missing inventory. 
5.There are no dispositions to prohibited individuals, nor apparent threat to 

Viols WL ONLY and No Recall Inspection 

M REVIEWED X CONCUR r:g SEE COMMENTS 

public safety. 

FINAL DISPOSITION 

SIGNATURE AND TITLE 
(b)(6) - Area Supervisor 

ROUTING SEQUENCE AND DATE 

(b)(6),Dbli6t1Ily signed by 

Date: 2017.03.31 
102736 -04'00' 

CI I  
❑2  

LI 3  
El 4-  

REVIEW DATE 
03/16/2017 

CONTROL FILE POSTED DATE 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, 
Firearms and Explosives 

www att. gcw 

May 4, 2017 

766085 

Hunter's Den, Inc 
11779 Buchanan Trail East 
\Waynesboro, PA l7268 
FFL#: 8-25-055-O1-U-OO13O 

Dear Hunter's Den, Inc: 

(b)(6) 
5373 

During a recent compliance inspection at your firearms business covering the period of 
January 5, 2016 through January 5, 2017, you were cited for violations of 27 Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 478 A copy of the Report of Violations, Form 5030.5. issued at the time of 
the inspection is enclosed. 

All violations were fully explained to you by the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and 
Explosives (ATF) inspector_ You indicated that you understood the requirements of the firearms 
laws and regulations. You further indicated that corrective actions would be taken to eliminate 
future violations. 

The records you are required to maintain and the business operations you conduct are important 
to law enforcement in our continuing effort to reduce violent crime and protect the public. It is 
essential that you comply with all Federal laws and regulations that govern your firearms 
business_ This is critical to carrying out our mission to protect the public and ensure that 
criminals do not gain access to firearms. ATF appreciates the efforts you and other industry 
members make in this area, and we look forward to continuing to work with you in that regard. 
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Hunter's Den, Inc 

You are reminded that retention of your Federal firearms license is conditioned upon your 
compliance with Federal laws and regulations. Any future violations, either repeat or otherwise, 
could be viewed as willful and may result in the revocation of your license. Please ensure that 
future compliance is achieved. 

Should ou have any questions regarding this matter, please contact IOI 
(b)(6) 

Enclosure 

c: National Licensing Center 
Philadelphia Field Division 

Sincerely yours, 

(b)(6) 

(b)(6) at 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco. Firearms and Explosives Report of Violations 

Ins' ructions 

Please write firmly with a bail point pen when completing this form. ATF officers will prepare this form in triplicate. The original copy will be given to the proprietor or a responsible 
represent at ire. The remaining copies will he submitted with the completed inspection report. Supervisors will demi] one copy from the completed report for their files. 

Name of Propnet or Street Address City State Zip Code County Page I of 
Hunter's Den, IOC, I 1779 Buchanan Trail East Waynesboro PA I 72fili- FRANKLIN 1 Pages 

License/Permit/Registry Number rtfooiy) 
825055001100130 

Expiration Date 

9/1/2018 

lnspectinn Results 

Datetst r r Period of Inspection 

01105/2017 through 01118/2017 

An examination of your premises, records and operations has disclosed the following violations which have been explained to you: 

Number; 1 

Nature of Violation: 

The licensee failed to ensure that the Administrative information on the ATF F 4471 was 
co !Ned as required prior lo the sale or trwfer of a firearm to a non-licensee tit nstances 
for oialgrors: Item I0a wac left blank i nstances; Item 1 la was answered with "No" 
answer in stances; Item I  was left blank in 'instance; Item 24 was left blank in nstartec; 
and Item 25 was left blank in nstance. 

i 
REPEAT VIOLATION, 

Citation: 27 CFR 478.21(at 

Date Corrections to be Made: 
not corrected immediately) 

a orrective Action to be Tokyo: 
lf not corrected intmedt teiv) 

Cl/25/2017 

The licensee was requested to attempt to contact the" 
customers for the ATP Forms 4471 found with errors that 
cart he cornxictt to have them come hack to the verniscs to 
make the necessary corrections to their respective 4473 
forms, The licensee was advised that they must ensure that 
the An, Forms 4473 am completed as required prior to the 
sale or transfer of a firearm to a non-licensee. 
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U.S. Deportment of J &slice 

Bureau of Alcohol, Ttqlacco. Etta:arms and Explosives Report of Violations 

Instructions 

Please write brolly with a hail point pen when completing this form. KIT officers will prepare this Form in triplicate. The original copy will be given to the proprietor or a responsible 
repre,,entalive. The remaining copies will by submitted with the completed inspection report. Supervisors will detach one copy from the completed report for their fi lex. 

Name of Posprieinr 

Hunter's Data, Inc. 

Street Address 

11779 Buchanan Trail East 

City 

Wayrreshoro 

State 

PA 

Zip Code 

1726R- 

County 

FT?ANKLIN 
PnEc 2 of 

3 Pages 

License/Permit/Registry Number (//drit.sd 

8250550111.10E it} 

Expiration Date 

9,1/2018 

Date(s) nr Period of inspection 

DI/05/2017 through (II/18/2017 

Ittipeetion Results 

An examination of your premises. records and operations has disclosed the following violations which have been explained to you: 

Numherf 2 

Nature iir Viohtiinn: 

The licensee faired in ensure that Sixiion A of the ATF For 47i was completed a. ui red 
prior to the sale or transfer of a Pre.arni kgja non-licensee in nstanees l'or a total of rrors: 
Item 2 was found to to be incomgLeie inlinstance; item I Ib was answered "s" in nstance; 
Item I lc was answered "Y • '' in Instance: Item 1 Id was answered ire instance: Item 

Ic was answered "Yes" in mix:I.-0; hell ? I r was answered ' 'es' in insmee: hem t I i was i

answer Yes" iniiinsiance; Item I I j was an ,creel "Yes" to 'nstance. Item 1 Ic was left 
blank in nsiancet hem Ile was left blank in indorse: hem 1 a t was left blank in 
item I I j a: left blank irenstances: hem I I -

 
was left blank iiiEnsianccs; licm ik 

blank in nslartres; hem Ii ' left blank i inslance; Item 16 was tel ark i 
anti Item was telt blank in octanes and was found to be incorrect in nsiances. 
REPEAT VIOLATION. 

Citation: 27 CFR 47R. I 24(e K I ) 

'nuance; 
was left 
octanes; 

Date Corrections to he Mode: 
Worn corrrofqi isionedrofriy) 

Corrective Action to he Token: 

(If am rat-wird iounedierel0 

01/25/2017 

Thcillicustorner.s who ansIs•ered "Yes" in Certification 
Questions in Item II passed the PICS background check, 
and the licensee then did not have reasonable cause to 
believe that those customers were limb 4.1. The licenses 
was requested Sri attempt In contact the tstonsers for the 
ATF Fonns 4473 found with errors that can he con-rued to 
have them come hack to the premises to make the necessary 
corrections to their respective 4473 forms. The licensee was 

advised that they must ensure that the ATF Forms 4471 are 
completed as required prior to the sale or transfer of 
Iirearm to a non-licensee. 
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(LS. Dcpartorwol of Justice 

Iltireau of Alcohol. Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives Report of Violations 

instruct ions 

Please write firmly with a hall point pen when completing this Ibrm. ATF officers will Prepare this form in triplicate. The original copy will he given to the proprietor or a responsible 
representative. The remaining caries will he submitted with the completed inspection repon. Supervisors will detach one copy from the completed repot for their files. 

Name of Proprietor 

Hunter's Den. Inc. 

Street Address 

11774 Buchanan Trail East 

City 

Waynesboro 

Suite 

PA 

Zip Ccxle 

17268- 

County 

FRANKLIN 
Fate 3 of 

1 Pages 

LicensdPermit/Rtigistry Number (ljont') 

825055018)00130 

Expiration Date 

9/1/2018 

Date(sr or Period of Inspection 

01105/2017 through 01/18/2017 

frwcillin Results 

An examination of your premises. records and operations has disclosed the following violations which have been explained to you: 

Number: 1 

Nottsre or Violation: 

The licensee failed in ensure that Section B. Identification Information of the ATF Form 4471 
was completed as required prior to the sale or transfer of a firearm to a non-licensee in l 

iiipstanees! Item 2(b was found to be incorrect iiiirwancec (expired ID dale) and incomplete in
Ilinsumees (livith no expiration date tested andawith no (11 number listed). 
REPEAT VIOLATION. 

Citation: 27 CFR 478,124(c)(1)(i) 

Number: 4 

Noture of Violation: 

The licensee fa; to proph maintain the li rm acquisition and dispo recordsition ord book 
Wel) hook) inan. c

ma
forvarm was found in inventory but was logged out of the A&13 

hook as disposed of: Ill2:1f171S were found to be disposed of but were not timely loged out of 
the A& hooks, and irearms were found in inventory but had duplicate entries in the A&D 
hooks (open dispositions for the same tirearrn). 
REPEAT VIOLATION, 

Citation: 27 CFR 478.125(01 

Date Corrections to he Mode: 
(ff on/ corrected onmrdiedely) 

Corrective Action to be Taken: 
(Yard corrected otottediatelv) 

Dale Correctinn.s to he Mode: 
(Ifoo, corrected immediately) 

Corrective Action to he Taken: 
(If not corrected inunedintely) 

0 (12512017 

The livensCV was requested to attempt to contact the® 
customers for 111C ATIr  Forms 4473 found with errors that 
can he corrected to have them come hack to doe premises to 
make the necessary corrections to their respective 4471 
forms. The licensee was advised that they must ensure that 
the ATF Forms 4473 are completed as required prior at the 

sale or transfer of a to a non•licensee. 

01/25/2017 

The licensee will make tlimccessary corrections to the A&0 
hooks by logging out thenirearm.s 1DX3 were disfrrised 
and not logged out. by correcting Ili' in arms that h id 
duplicate entries in the A&D books, and by correcting the 
Firearm entry in the gunsmith A&D hook that was logged out 
in error. 

I Have Received a Copy or This Report of Violations 11'roprirror'.c .trgiottorr Mid ride) Date 

SIgtiali ire and Tole or ATF 0llicer Date 

ofrklai the ()April 9 2019 Document Production 171 ATP'  n roan 564rt 
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FIREARMS INSPECTION REPORT 

Name: Hunters Den, Inc. 
Trade Name: N/A 

Address: 11779 Buchanan Trail East 
Waynesboro, PA 17268 (Franklin Co.) 

1 - Introduction 

Inspection Profile: 
On January 5th, 6th, 9th, 11 th, 12th, and 18th, 2017, S1O1(b)(6) of the 
Harrisburg II (IO) Area Office conducted a Recall firearm compliance 
inspection for Hunters Den, Inc. at the above listed business premises. The 
licensee was not provided with advance notification of this firearm compliance 
inspection. Upon arrival at the above listed business premises, store owner and 
Responsible Person Stuart "Stu" McFerren was available for the inspection and 
was interviewed. Mr. McFerren assisted this SIOI with the compliance 
inspection for each of the above days listed. The inspection period covered the 
licensee's firearm activity for the past year, from 1/5/16 to 1/5/17. 

UI#: 766085-2017-0056 B1B 
FFL#: 8-25-055-01-8J-00130 

Business Profile: 
Hunter's Den, Inc. operates as a commercial retail firearm sales, gunsmithing, 
and firearm accessory sales business. The business holds a Type 01 FFL which 
was found to be posted as required (FFL # 8-23-00130, exp. 9/1/2018). The 
business also holds a current PA License to Sell Firearms, which was found 
posted near the FFL (# 8994, exp. 1/31/2017). Hunter's Den, Inc., owned by 
sole corporate officer Stuart R. "Stu" McFerren, is predominately engaging in 
dealing in new and used sporting rifles, shotguns, and handguns, with some 
gunsmithing services occurring as well. The licensee's firearm inventory 
consists mostly of hunting and sporting rifles and shotguns, collectible 
firearms, and handguns utilized for personal defense and sporting use. The 
licensee also sells several AR-15 type rifles, as well as other military type semi-
automatic rifles. According to the licensee's records, Hunters Den, Inc. had 
acquired firearms in the past year, and sold or disposed of approximately 

firearms during the last year. Approximately seventy percent (70%) of the 
irearms sold during the past twelve months were in new condition and the 

other thirty percent (30%) were in used condition. of the firearms in 
inventory are long guns, while the remainin o the firearms in inventory 
are handguns or "other" firearms (receivers an ames). The showroom area of 
the store is at the rear of the building, with wall display racks for the rifles and 
shotguns, with handguns located in the glass display cases under the gun shop 
counters. The attic area and rear storage room are both used as a storage area 
for holding excess firearm invento and "la -awa " firearms. Most of the new 
firearms are acquired from 
Because of its close proximity to t e Mary an I I order, many o t e customers 
of this licensee are from Maryland. In addition to regular firearm transactions, 

(b) (4) 

Revised 7/1/15 Page 1 of 12 
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FIREARMS INSPECTION REPORT 

Name: Hunters Den, Inc. UI#: 766085-2017-0056 B1B 
Trade Name: N/A FFL#: 8-25-055-01-8J-00130 

the licensee does on occasion enter into a consignment agreement with a 
customer and attempt to sell the customer's firearm. Mr. McFerren's business 
does not engage in any firearm business over the internet or at gun shows (See 
attached Information and Statistics Worknote). 

Hunter's Den, Inc. is located in the commercial storefront building on the Rt. 
16 East business corridor district in southern Franklin Co., about three miles 
east of the town of Waynesboro. It was verified during the past compliance 
inspections in 2009 and 2012 that the licensee was in compliance with the local 
zoning ordinances. No further zoning compliance inquiries were made during 
this current inspection. 

Ownership and Control: 
Hunter's Den, Inc. is a PA registered corporation created in 1990. The business 
is owned and operated by Stuart R. McFerren. Mr. McFerren is the only 
corporate officer for the corporation, and he is listed as the sole Responsible 
Person for this licensee as appropriate. The business premises is owned by the 
corporation. Mr. McFerren has several employees who work for him, but none 
have direct oversight and/or control of the business. There are no other owners 
or controllers of this business. There is no hidden ownership suspected with this 
licensee. 

Variance: 
No variances are on file for this licensee, and none are needed as a result of this 
inspection. 

2 - Recommendation 
Alternate Recommendation: 
Four violations were found and cited during this inspection. All four violations cited 
during this inspection were repeat violations from previous inspections. A Report of 
Violations was issued to the licensee. Because of the repeat violations cited, a strict 
reading of the Administrative Action policy would allow for a recommendation of 
Revocation. However, the licensee was found during this inspection to have a 
compliance rate of 99.7% in regards to the A&D books and inventory, and was found to 
have a compliance rate of 97.91% compliance rate in regards to the ATF Forms 4473. 
The violations found would only meet the threshold of a Report of Violations issued 
only if this was the licensee's first inspection. Because the compliance rate for this 
licensee is so high, and the number of instances of violations found was lower than 
found in previous inspections, willfulness to not abide by the regulations cannot be 
articulated. It is recommended that the licensee be issued a Warning Letter to address 
the violations found, specifically the ATF Form 4473 Certification Section errors, with 
no Recall Inspection. 

Revised 7/1/15 Page 2 of 12 
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FIREARMS INSPECTION REPORT 

Name: Hunters Den, Inc. 
Trade Name: N/A 

3 - Inspection History 

Date of Inspection: 
Type of Inspection: 
UI#: 
Inspection Results: 

Cited Violations: 

Date of Inspection: 
Type of Inspection: 
UI#: 
Inspection Results: 

Cited Violations: 

Date of Inspection: 
Type of Inspection: 
UI#: 
Inspection Results: 

Cited Violations: 

UI#: 766085-2017-0056 B1B 
FFL#: 8-25-055-01-8J-00130 

July 28th, 2015 
Recall Firearm Compliance Ins • ection 
766085-2015-0062 / Lead IOI: (b)(6) 
Six violations found and cited. ROV issued to the licensee. 
Recommend WC with WL and Recall Inspection 
478.21(a); 478.124(c)(1); 478.126a, 478.99(a); 
478.99(b);478.99(c) 

August 14th, 2013 
Recall Firearm Compliance Inspection 
766085-2013-0183 / Lead IOI 
Nine violations found and cite' ROV issued to the licensee. 
Recommend WL with Recall Inspection. 
478.125(e); 478.124(c)(1); 478.99(c); 478.124(c)(3)(i); 
478.124(c)(3)(iv); 478.124(c)(5); 478.21(a); 478.126a; 
478.41(a) 

(b)(6) 

February 22nd, 2012 
Recall Firearm Compliance Ins • ection 
766085-2012-0070 / Lead IOI: (b) (6) 
One violation found and cited. ROV issued to the licensee. 
Recommend WL with Recall Inspection. 
478.125(e) 

4 - Acquisition & Disposition (A&D) Record - Inventory 
A full A&D book review and firearm inventory verification was completed during this 
inspection (See Worksheet # 1, Inventory / A&D Review). It was discovered that the 
licensee currently uses 24 open A&D books to document the firearm transactions at the 
shop. All of the A&D books in use are hand written, commercially made A&D books 
obtained from (b) (4) (older books and gunsmith books) and from the 
National Association o Licensed Firearms Dealers (newer sales and transfer books). 
All of the open A&D books were reviewed during the inspection. The newer A&D 
records were found to be maintained on a shelf near the front counter of the shop, with 
the gunsmith A&D books maintained in the gunsmith workshop area. The books were 
found to be printed in the required format, and included all of the information required 
of an A&D record. No discrepancies were found with the required information listed for 
the firearms in the A&D books. 

Revised 7/1/15 Page 3 of 12 
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FIREARMS INSPECTION REPORT 

Name: Hunters Den, Inc. UI#: 766085-2017-0056 B1B 
Trade Name: N/A FFL#: 8-25-055-01-8J-00130 

A full firearm inventory verification was completed at Hunter's Den, Inc. during this 
cinspection. There were a total of firearms found in inventory at the shop premises. 

However, there were. blank ispositions found in the A&D books. Firearms were 
found in display racks on the side walls of the rear portion of the shop and in glass 
display cases under the counters in the gun sales area, but many other firearms were 
found in the attic storage area and a rear storage room off of the gunsmith workshop. 
These firearms were compared to the licensee's acquisition and disposition record 
books. It was then discovered that there werelliscrepancies found between the 
firearms in physical inventory and the A&D books (See Exhibit # 1, Images of the 
A&D book errors). They are as follows:. firearm was listed in the A&D book as 
being disposed of, but was found in inventory,. firearm was disposed of, but was not 
timely logged out of the A&D book; Ill firearms were found with a blank disposition 
in the A&D book but were not found in inventory (sold and not logged out), and 
firearm were found to have duplicate entries in the A&D book. Mr. McFerren state 
that he was going to conduct an inventory for tax purposes within the next couple of 
weeks, and would have discovered the discrepancies. There were no other inventory 
discrepancies found, and all firearms were accounted for during the firearm inventory. 
The licensee was cited for the A&D book and inventory violations listed above found 
during this inspection (See Violation # 4, on the attached ATF F 5030.5, Report of 
Violations). 

There were a total of 1670 ATF Forms 4473 on file for the past year. A sample of 100 
forms were reviewed to trace the firearms sold or transferred on the forms in the A&D 
book from the acquisition of the firearm to the final disposition of the firearm on the 
4473 form. 50 forms were traced from the final disposition back through the A&D book 
to acquisition, and the remaining 50 firearm transactions were traced from acquisition to 
the final disposition on the 4473 form. No discrepancies were found. 

Standard Operating Procedures/Internal Controls Evaluation: This licensee does 
not have any set standard operating procedures in place in regards to the firearm 
inventory and the A&D books. The building where the business is located has an 
alarmed security system in place with recorded camera surveillance to deter theft. 
Business owner Stu McFerren and several other employees are allowed to make entries 
in the A&D books for the business. Mr. McFerren stated that he tries to review the 
A&D books as much as he can, and stated that he tries to do an inventory of the 
firearms at least twice a year (one inventory at tax time) to ensure that the firearms are 
accounted for and the A&D books are correct. The A&D books are maintained in an 
orderly fashion behind the counter in the gun sales area of the shop. Firearms in 
inventory are kept on wall mounted display racks and display cases, away from any 
potential customer's reach. All firearms are tagged back to the A&D book by date of 
acquisition, making the inventory verification easier. Although six inventory 
discrepancies were found, due to the high volume of sales business for this FFL, the 
A&D book / inventory errors only accounted for 0.3% of the total firearm business. No 
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internal control or SOP problems were found during this inspection. (Reference ROV 
Violation # 4, Worksheet # 1, and Exhibit # 1). 

5 - ATF Forms 4473 — NICS & Other Dispositions 
A review of all of the ATF Forms 4473 on file at Hunter's Den, Inc. for the past year 
was completed during this inspection (See Worksheet # 2, ATF F 4473 Review). There 
were a total of 1670 ATF Forms 4473 on file for this inspection period. Of the 1670 

gforms reviewed for the inspection period, a total of forms were found to have a 
combined total of. discrepancies or errors (See Ex ibit # 2, Images of sample 4473 
forms found with errors). The errors found are as follows: 478.21(a) - The licensee 
failed to ensure that the Administrative information on the ATF F 4473 was completed 
as required prior to the sale or transfer of a firearm to a non-licensee in instances for I Atotal errors: Item 10a was left blank i instances; Item 11 a was answered with a "No" 
answer hi instances; Item 18 was le t lank ii instance; Item 24 was left blank hil 
instance; and Item 25 was left blank kg instance; 478.124(c) 1) - Item 2 was found to 
be incomplete i instance; Item llb was answered "Yes" in instance; Item 11c was 
answered "Yes" 1 instance; Item 11 d was answered "Yes" MI instance; Item 11 e 
was answered "Yes" i instance; Item 11 f was answered "Yes" in instance; Item lli 
was answered "Yes" in instance; Item 11j was answered "Yes" in nstance; Item 11c 
was left blank in Instance; Item 11 e was left blank in 'instance; Item 11h was left 
blank in 'instance; Item 11 j was left blank inilinstances, Item 1 lk was left blank in II 
instances; Item 111 was left blank innnstances; Item 13 was left blank irMinstance, 
Item 16 was left blank irlinstances, and Item 17 was left blank inlnstances and was 
found to be incorrect ininstances; and 478.124(c)(3)(i) - The licensee failed to ensure 
that Section B, Identification Information of the ATF Form 4473 was completed as 
required prior to the sale or transfer of a firearm to a non-licensee irlanstances: Item 
20a was found to be incorrect iranstances (e)ipired ID date) and incomplete ink
instances ("with no expiration date listed and with no ID number listed),Item 20a was 
found to be incorrect or incomplete inlinstances (exp. date errors); and Item 20b was 
found to be left blank inlanstances. The _customers who had answered 
Certification Section questions with a "Yes" answer had all passed the PICS 
background check, and the licensee then would not have a reasonable cause to believe 
that those customers were prohibited. The specific ATF Form 4473 violations listed 
above were cited on an ATF F 5030.5, Report of Violations (See Violations # 1, # 2, 
and # 3 on the attached ROV). 

A request was made to the PA State Police to obtain the PICS approval numbers for this 
licensee for the period from 6/1/16 to 1/3/17 (See Exhibit # 3, List of the PICS 
transaction numbers). There were 959 PICS transaction numbers issued to the licensee 
for the above 6 month period. The 959 PICS transaction numbers and denials were 
compared to the 4473s during the 4473 review. No discrepancies were found with the 
PICS transaction numbers compared to the 4473 forms. 
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Standard Operating Procedures/Internal Controls Evaluation: This licensee does 
not have any set standard operating procedures in place in regards to the firearm 
transactions and the maintenance and review of the 4473 forms. Business owner 
Stu McFerren and his several employees all conduct firearm transactions and 
complete the 4473 forms. Mr. McFerren stated that the people who are 
conducting the firearm transactions are supposed to review the 4473 forms at the 
time of sale, and then have another employee or himself review the form as well 
to ensure that the required information is correct. The 4473 forms are maintained 
in transaction serial number order, which is the number of the firearm's listing in 
the A&D books. They are generally in chronological order as well. The denied 
forms were kept in a separate file in chronological order. Mr. McFerren does 
keep the 4473 forms separate from the bulk form files for a period of time to 
ensure that multiple handgun sales are being reported as required. li total 4473 pform errors were found during the inspection, including errors occurring in 
the Certification Section of the form. Due to the high vo ume of sales business 
for this FFL, the 4473 errors only accounted for 2.09% of the total forms on file 
for the inspection period. The licensee was advised that the 4473 form review 
must be more critical by him and his employees to ensure that the forms are 
completed as required. (Reference ROV Violations # 1, # 2, and # 3, Worksheet 
# 2, and Exhibits # 2 and # 3). 

6 - Multiple Sales 
An ATF E-Trace Multiple Handgun Sale history query was conducted for Hunter's 
Den, Inc. (FFL #8-25-00130) for the period of 1/5/16 to 1/5/17. This licensee was found 
to have been associated with 36 multiple handgun sales reported during the above listed 
inspection period. A review of the required firearm records at the licensed premises 
discovered that these 36 multiple handgun sales were reported as required, with the 
Multiple Handgun Sale Report forms filed with their respective 4473 forms. There were 
no unreported multiple handgun sales that were found to have occurred for the licensee 
during the inspection period 

7 - Suspicious/Prohibited Purchasers 
Three firearm purchasers were selected during this inspection to undergo NCIC and 
NLETS background checks to ensure that they are not prohibited persons (See 
NCIC/NLETS Worlmote : 

• On 12/2/16, nswered Item lli in the Certification Section 
of the 4473 form with a "Yes" answer (Misdemeanor Crime of Domestic 
Violence); 
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• On 1/4/16, alEIMinswered Item 11j in the Certification Section on 
the 4473 form with a "Yes" answer (Renounced US Citizenship): 

• And on 5/16/16, aIIIIIIIIIIIanswered Item 11 b through llf in the 
Certification Section on the 4473 form. 

All three of these customers passed the PICS background check at the time of purchase 
and received a "Proceed" response. The firearms they purchased were then transferred 
to the above three customers at the end of the transaction. Since the three customers all 
passed the PICS background check, the licensee would not have a reasonable cause to 
believe that the customers were prohibited. The three customers listed above did not 
have any hits in NCIC or NLETS and are not prohibited persons. 

Two purchasers were selected for further scrutiny through ATF E-Trace and Accurint 
for possible / otential strawpurchase activity: 

• f Waynesboro, PA, purchased a firearm on 11/2/16 from 
Hunters Den, Inc.I.MMnswered Item 11a in the Certification Section 
with a "No" answer Are you the actual buyer / transferee?). 

• f Waynesboro, PA, had three handguns transferred to her 
(private handgun sale) on 11/22/16 from Hunters Den, InclEMMrtswered 
Item 11 a in the Certification Section with a "No" answer (Are you the actual 
buyer / transferee?). This transaction was reported as a Multi le Handgun Sale 
to ATF and the local chief law enforcement officer 473 form is 
included in Exhibit # 2, Images of sample 4473 forms found with errors. 

There was no information found on these two individuals or the firearms they purchased 
in ATF E-Trace. A search through Accurint foriEl liscovered no 

• • potential associated with this I urchaser. An Accurint search for 
ti I 

ound a prohibited person (a ) potentially associated with 
IMMIIIMMas a neighbor (See Exhibit # 4, (D)('S) 112 Public Law 55 125 STAT 552 (b)(6) 

reports). Although the multiple sale / transfer was reported to ATF, the additional 
information surrounding the purchase warrants a referral to the Philadelphia Field 
Division Crime Gun Intelligence Group for thaIIIIIIIIMmultiple handgun 
purchase/transfer (Reference Exhibit # 4). 

8 - Trace Activity 
The ATF E-Trace database was searched for firearm trace activity for the licensee prior 
to the inspection. It was discovered that Hunter's Den, Inc. (FFL # 8-25-00130) was 
associated wit firearms trace requests for the period of 1/5/16 to 1/5/17. 
The shortest firearm trace ad a Time to Crime period of 29 days (traced to the 
purchaser), and the longest firearm trace had a Time to Crime of 15 years. The average 
firearm trace Time to Crime period range was 7.75 years for the. traces during the 
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inspection period. This licensee has averaged a high amount of traces due to the high 
volume of firearm sales over the past several years. There were no indicators found with 
these traces that show the licensee is knowingly involved in any firearm trafficking 
activity. All of the trace requests received for this licensee have been successfully 
completed. There were no issues discovered regarding any incomplete or unresolved 
firearm traces for this licensee. 

Hunter's Den, Inc. does accept used firearms for trade and/or resale on a regular basis 
illfor the business. A total o used firearms acquired by the licensee from the period of 

12/12/16 to 1/4/17 were se ected as a sample of used firearms for a Secondary Market 
cpEvaluation (See Secondary Market Evaluation Worknote). These used firearms were 

run through the ATF E-Trace database for any trace histories, an were also run through 
NCIC/NLETS to determine if they had been reported stolen. All lused firearms 
selected for this workstep were found not to have been reported stolen or involved in a 
firearm trace. No secondary market problems were discovered during this inspection. 

9 - NFA/Imnorter/CollectorManufacturer 
Hunter's Den, Inc. holds a Type 01 Firearm Dealer FFL, and is not licensed to conduct 
any firearm manufacturing/collecting/importing, and does not hold SOT to sell NFA 
firearms. 

10 - Referrals 
A Referral of Information was submitted to the Philadelphia Field Division's Crime 
Gun Intelli ence Group in regards to the suspicious transfer of three handguns to a 

, who answered Item # 11 a on the 4473 form with a "No" answer (See 
Section 7, Suspicious/Prohibited Purchasers above) (Reference ATF Form 5000.21, 
Referral of Information). 

11 - Other 
No safety or security concerns were found during this inspection. Hunter's Den, Inc. is a 
commercial firearm sales and firearm supplies store. The cooperation level of the RP 
and business owner Stu McFerren and his employees during the inspection was very 
good. The business space is large, but the actual areas where the firearms and records 
are kept are somewhat small with limited working space in most areas of the business 
premises. The hours of operation for this business are Mondays through Fridays from 
10am to 6pm. No safety or security concerns or problems were encountered during the 
inspection. The licensee had the required Youth Handgun Safety Act poster and notices 
present, and also had the required secure gun storage devices available. No violations of 
the Secure Gun Storage and Safety Device Act, nor of the Child Safety Lock Act of 
2005, were found during this inspection. 
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Mr. McFerren was asked if his business was currently working with or involved with 
any local or state law enforcement operations to discover and arrest straw purchasers. 
Mr. McFerren stated that his business is currently not coordinating any anti-straw 
purchase operations with local or state law enforcement at this time, and not been 
involved with such operations since first obtaining the FFL in 1990. 

The security of the business and the firearms in inventory at Hunters Den, Inc. was 
found to be adequate. Hunters Den, Inc. is located in a cinder block commercial 
building, which is kept locked when not open. Business owner Stu McFerren does have 
a security system and recorded camera surveillance set up in his business area to deter 
thefts. The long guns on the wall display racks are kept out of arm's reach of the 
customers, and the handguns are kept in secured display cases underneath the main 
counters in the gun sales area. Mr. McFerren stated that he has not had any thefts from 
the store (firearm or non-firearm) for many years. The licensee was advised of the 
surging trend of FFL burglaries, and to secure the firearms in the business as best as 
possible. 

12 - Closing Actions 
A closing conference was held with business owner Stu McFerren at the premises of 
Hunter's Den, Inc. at the conclusion of the inspection on January 18th, 2017. At this 
time, Mr. McFerren was issued the ATF F 5030.5, Report of Violations on behalf of the 
licensee to document the violations found during the inspection. All of the cited 
violations were explained in detail to Mr. McFerren, along with the corrective actions 
necessary to correct all of the deficiencies found during the inspection. Mr. McFerren 
stated that he understood the violations that were found and cited, and signed two copies 
of the Report of Violations form, maintaining one copy for his records. Also, an 
Acknowledgement of Federal Firearms Regulations Checklist was reviewed at this time 
with Mr. McFerren. All of Mr. McFerren's questions and concerns regarding his firearm 
business activities were addressed and answered during this regulations review. At the 
conclusion of the regulation review, Mr. McFerren signed two copies of the 
Acknowledgement checklist, and maintained a copy for his reference (See Exhibit # 5, 
Copy of the Acknowledgement form signed by Mr. McFerren). Mr. McFerren was also 
given an ATF contact information list for his reference should he have any questions or 
concerns in the future. 

The license was given until COB on 1/25/17 to make the requested attempts to notify 
the effected customers to come back to the shop to make corrections to the errors found 
on the 4 ATF Forms 4473 found with errors during the inspection. Most of the 
customers were local and Mr. McFerren stated that he would contact via phone as he 
retains phone numbers for all of his customers, or by letter if needed. It was verified via 
telephone contact on 1/25/17 with Mr. McFerren that the customers had been contacted 
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via phone or an attempt was made to contact them for them to come back to the shop to 
make the necessary corrections. (Reference Exhibit # 5). 

13 - Violations 
1 . 27 CFR 478.21(a) 

Nature of the Violation: 
The licensee failed to ensure that the Administrative information on the ATF F 4473 
was completed as required prior to the sale or transfer of a firearm to a non-licensee Mil 
instances for! total errors: Item 10a was left blank hi instances; Item lla was 
answered wit a "No" answer in i instances; Item 18 was left blank in' instance; Item 
24 was left blank MI instance; and Item 25 was left blank iii instance. 

Licensee's Response: The licensee was surprised over the finding of several 4473 form 
errors. The licensee stated that there is a review process in place to review the forms 
from the time of transaction to the time of filing, and did not know why the 4473 errors 
were not caught. 

Corrective Action: The licensee was requested to attempt to contact the 7 customers 
for the ATF Forms 4473 found with errors that can be corrected to have them come 
back to the premises to make the necessary corrections to their respective 4473 forms. 
The licensee was advised that they must ensure that the ATF Forms 4473 are completed 
as required prior to the sale or transfer of a firearm to a non-licensee. 
REPEAT VIOLATION. 
Reference Worksheet # 2 and Exhibit # 2 

2. 27 CFR 478.124(c)(1) 
Nature of the Violation: 
The licensee failed to ensure that Section A of the ATF Forms 4473 was completed as 
required nor to the sale or transfer of a firearm to a non-licensee in. instances for a 
total of errors: Item 2 was found to be incomplete iii instance; Item 11 b was 
answere "Yes" in 'instance; Item 11 c was answered "Yes" iii instance; Item 11 d 
was answered "Yes" i instance; Item 11 e was answered "Yes" inEnstance, Item 11 f 1 
was answered "Yes" i instance; Item 11 i was answered "Yes" inilinstance; Item 11j 
was answered "Yes" itninstance; Item 11c was left blank in, instance; Item Ile was 
left blank inilinstance, Item 11h was left blank inlinstance; Item 11j was left blank in 

'instances; Item 11k was left blank iainstances, Item 111 was left blank in. 
instances; Item 13 was left blank inanstance, Item 16 was left blank inanstances, 
and Item 17 was left blank inllinstances and was found to be incorrect inilinstances. 

Licensee's Response: The licensee was surprised over the finding of several 4473 form 
errors. The licensee stated that there is a review process in place to review the forms 
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from the time of transaction to the time of filing, and did not know why the 4473 errors 
were not caught. 

EllilCorrective Action: The customers who answered "Yes" to Certification 
Questions in Item 11 passe t e PICS background check, and the licensee then did not 
have reasonable cause to believe that those customers were prohibited. The licensee was Rrequested to attempt to contact the customers for the ATF Forms 4473 found with 
errors that can be corrected to have t em come back to the premises to make the 
necessary corrections to their respective 4473 forms. The licensee was advised that they 
must ensure that the ATF Forms 4473 are completed as required prior to the sale or 
transfer of a firearm to a non-licensee. 
REPEAT VIOLATION. 
Reference Worksheet # 2 and Exhibit # 2 

3. 27 CFR 478.124(c)(3)(i) 
Nature of the Violation: 
The licensee failed to ensure that Section B, Identification Information of the ATF Form 
4473 was completed as required prior to the sale or transfer of a firearm to a 

instances: Item 20a was found to be incorrect in instances (expired ID 
non-

licensee !ill 
date) and incomplete iii instances I with no expiration date isted and' with no ID 
number listed). 

Licensee's Response: The licensee was surprised over the finding of several 4473 form 
errors. The licensee stated that there is a review process in place to review the forms 
from the time of transaction to the time of filing, and did not know why the 4473 errors 
were not caught. 

1Corrective Action: The licensee was requested to attempt to contact the customers 
for the ATF Forms 4473 found with errors that can be corrected to have t em come 
back to the premises to make the necessary corrections to their respective 4473 forms. 
The licensee was advised that they must ensure that the ATF Forms 4473 are completed 
as required prior to the sale or transfer of a firearm to a non-licensee. 
REPEAT VIOLATION. 
Reference Worksheet # 2 and Exhibit # 2 

4. 27 CFR 478.125(e) 
Nature of the Violation: 

ifThe licensee failed to roperly maintain the firearm acquisition and disposition record 
book (A&D book) i instances: firearm was found in inventory but was logged out 
of the A&D book as isposed of; irearms were found to be disposed of but were not 
timely logged out of the A&D books, and "firearms were found in inventory but had 
duplicate entries in the A&D books *pen dispositions for the same firearm). 
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Licensee's Response: The licensee stated that he was due to conduct an inventory at 
the end of January, and was not surprised to see that there were some mistakes in the 
A&D books. 

Corrective Action: The licensee will make the necessary corrections to the A&D books 
by logging out thelifirearms that were disposed of and not logged out, by correcting the 

'firearms that had duplicate entries in the A&D books, and by correcting thelfirearm 
entry in the gunsmith A&D book that was logged out in error. 
REPEAT VIOLATION. 
Reference Worksheet # 1 and Exhibit # 1 

(b)(6) 
Industry Operations Investigator 
Signed by: (b)(6) 

Index of Worksheets and Exhibits 
Inspection Worksheet Workbook 
- Worksheet # 1, Inventory and A&D Review 
- Worksheet # 2, ATF Form 4473 Review 

Exhibit # 1, Images of the A&D book errors 
Exhibit # 2, Images of sample 4473 forms found with errors 
Exhibit # 3, List of the PICS transaction numbers 
Exhibit # 4, (b)(3) 112 Public Law 55 125 STAT 552 (b)(6i reports 
Exhibit # 5, Copy of the Acknowledgement form signed by Mr. McFerren 
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